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CHAIR CARROLL: The Human Services and Economic Development Committee will
now convene. '" (gavel) ... Good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS AND AUDIENCE: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Today, we have with us Committee members Jo Anne Johnson,
Vice-Chair; Riki Hokama, Pat Kawano and Mike Molina. We also have with us
Councilmember Wayne Nishiki; Corporation Council, Ed Kushi, Jr.; and our
Administrative representative Alice Lee, Director of the Department of Housing
and' Human Concerns. Our staff members are Shannon Alueta, Committee
Analyst and Karen [sic] Zukeran, our Committee secretary.
Public testimony will be accepted for each item on the agenda this morning.
Those wishing to testify should sign ... sign up at the secretary's desk. Testimony
should be limited to three minutes. Any additional minute to con ... conclude
testimony may be granted subject to the discretion of the Chair. If testimony is
incomplete, an additional three minutes will be given after all the others have
been heard. Testifiers are requested to state their names for the record, and to
indicate who they're representing. To minimize disturbances during the meeting,
please turn off all pagers and cellular phones or put them to the silent mode.
We have two items on the agenda today-HSED-7, West Side Resource Center
Lease Agreement and HSED-3, Proposed Resolution Accepting Dedication of
Land. We are going to hear HSED-7 first.
Members, as you re ... remember, the Council accepted a five-acre parcel of land
from Pioneer Mill earlier this term which will be developed into the West Side
Resource Center. Today, we are discussing the lease agreement to MauL
Economic Concerns of the Community, an entity that is developing the West Side
Resource Center. We will need to vote on the proposed resolution authorizing a
grant of lease of real property to Maui Economic Concerns of the Community,
Inc.
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I will now take public testimony.
MS. ALUETA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier if May Fujiwara. She will be followed by
Edward Mathias.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .•

Pause while Ms. Fujiwara approaches the podium.
MS. FUJIWARA: Chairperson Carroll, members of the Council and staff, good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MS. FUJIWARA: My name is May Fujiwara. I'm president of the Lahaina-Honolua
Senior Citizens Club. Our club is well presented today. If you people ... if you
Council members will turn around and look at the many, happy, smiling faces in
the audience, ... (Iaughter and applause) ... and I would like our Lahaina group
and all those in support of our Lahaina seniors to please stand. . .. (applause
and pause while members in the audience stand to be recognized). .. Thank
you.
They look happy, don't they? ... (Iaughter) .. , No one could be happier. We are
here to thank the,Council for your dedication to the people of the County of MauL
We appreciate your hard work and the long hours you have put into finalizing the
budget. We all know that you've been putting in long hours because we all watch
Akaku-and, uh, sometimes we see you late in the evening, with bloodshot eyes
and those of the Council members who are married, you must have very
understanding spouses. But thank you for your support for the MEO, the adult
day care center's programs at Kaunoa, Meals on Wheels and other programs
involving seniors.
When our seniors first heard rumors that we might be getting a west side senior
center, we hit the ground running, and I want you to know, at full speed. We got
a committee together and worked on a timeline and plans of what we would like
our senior center to look like and to include. And we were elated when we heard
that the Council would fund a quarter of a million dollars for the planning stages,
and the rest of the money to follow in bond money. We would appreciate if you
would authorize the sale of the bond so we can start immediately. And I want to
assure you that we will work very diligently and our seniors will continue to be
involved in the planning stages for our senior center.
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Now, the only thing that seems to be holding us back is the matter of the land
that was offered for the west side senior center site, where the old Pioneer Mill
office currently stands. We are aware that there is a small sliver of unclaimed
land on that property. Even if the owners were found, I don't believe that the land
is large enough on which to build anything. As one of our members had
suggested, we could build around that small piece of land and leave that part as
a parking lot or a garden.
Again, we thank you for funding our senior center, but we urge the Council to
please accept the property so we can finally realize our long-awaited dream of
having our own west side senior center. Thank you .... (applause)...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions?
MS. ALUETA: The next testifier is Edward Mathias.
Arda Vonderheid.

He will be followed by

Pause while Mr. Mathias approaches the podium.

MR. MATHIAS: I am Edward Mathias, sir and the Council. In the Wizard of Oz,
Dorothy comes to a cross ... a fork in the road, and she had to make a decision
which way to go. And there was-I don't remember who the character was
there-and then she asked him, and says, "Which road should I take?" And he
asked her, "Where do you want to go?" She said, "It does not matter where I go."
And then he said, "Well, if it doesn't matter where you go, then go where you
want." 1...1...1 want to share with you that we, as senior citizens of Lahaina, we do
know what we want and what direction we need to go. And so, we're here-if
we're begging or pleading, we will do so. It has been said that without integrity,
there are no victories, only the calm before the storm. And heard prior to the
November election, we were at Kaanapali at one of the political rallies, and
Mayor Apanawas present and he gave a brief talk. And he looked at us, the
Lahaina citizens ... senior citizens, and he said ... mentioned about "you will have
your senior citizens building in Lahaina." And, uh, I have ... know for a surety that
he has done all he can. In other words, he's done his part. And then what's left
is you people here, and we hope that you will really consider this desire of ours to
have a building of our own. Thank you. " .(applause) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions?
MS. ALUETA: The next testifier is Arda Vonderheid, who will be followed by
Ezekiela Kalua.
Pause while Ms. Vonderheid approaches the podium.
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MS. VONDERHEID: Good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS AND AUDIENCE: Good morning.
MS. VONDERHEID: All your faces look very familiar. And I think we've all seen you
and in Lahaina previously.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you state your name in the microphone, please.
MS. VONDERHEID: All of your faces are very familiar, and I know I've seen you here
or in Lahaina. My name is Arda Vonderheid. I'm president of the AAR.P.
Chapter in Lahaina, and also chair of the Council on Aging. I represent AAR.P.,
I represent myself. I did not take an official vote of the Council of Aging
members, but each of them have spoken to me in support of this endeavor.
I always ask to follow May. And the reason I ask to follow May, very honestly, is
because she is always, always very well organized and gives and excellent
presentation. I'm even glad that I'm following Ed this morning.
I want to talk to you about...if you'll look at the audience, the audience represents
the people of Lahaina and the senior citizens of Lahaina. And you'll notice that
our...there a few us who are still called "haoles" although we have lived here for
what we think is a long time. We support this endeavor. We ask you, please,
accept the land. And while you're at it, please approve the sale of the bonds.
Without the bond issuing, we cannot go ahead with what needs to be done
rapidly.
We thank you for all of your support of the projects in Lahaina and the projects
on the island for seniors, and of the 36 small groups that are involved on Maui of
senior citizens. I thank you for your endeavors. I plead with you to go ahead and
do what needs to be done for the senior center on West Maui, and I thank you .
. . .(applause) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions?
MS. ALUETA:
The next testifier is Ezekiela Kalua, who will be followed by
Kattie Nahina.
Pause while Mr. KaJua approaches the podium.

MR. KALUA: Good morning.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS AND AUDIENCE: Good morning.
MR. KALUA: Before I begin, I just wanted to thank of the Council members for the
assistance in adding of the satellite hours in West MauL We really appreciate
that. Urn ... , where do I begin?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. KALUA: Okay. . .. (chuckle). .. My name is Ezekiela Kalua. I'm the executive
assistant to West Maui Taxpayers Association in Lahaina. They say that without
knowledge of culture and understanding of the past, you could refer that to a tree
without roots. Basically, it's about to fall and it's about to flounder. When there is
consideration given to the West Side Resource Center and regards to the senior
citizens, this is not to be considered as a light option-this is pretty much a
necessity. I believe that without knowledge of any past, there is no presenting
towards the future for other generations to aspire. You know, here in Hawaii,
we're. not just known as Hawaiians, but we're known as people having the "aloha
spirit" and we're a kindred culture that is considered endangered. The people
that are here in the audience that are in very large support of this are people that
should be considered as real people that we could all aspire to. What they have
to offer is not what you could find in a textbook, it's not what you could read on a
wall somewhere. And when that is no longer available for anyone to know of and
to understand and to hear, it's lost. And, on behalf of West Maui Taxpayers
Association, we support you seniors and we hope that the senior... the site for the
senior proposed plan is accepted and, if needs be, the small parcel that May
referred to as not large enough to build anything, plant a garden. That's
reasonable. I would think that if the person that owned that parcel was to come
up and realize what was going on over there, they'd be in full support of it. And I
would just, uh, we ask for your careful consideration in this matter, and please do
all that you can to support the senior center and the West Side Resource Center
in Lahaina, MauL Thank you .... (applause) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions.
MR. KALUA: Any questions?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MS. ALUETA: The next testifier is Kattie Nahina, who will be followed by Patty
Nishiyama.
Pause while Ms. Nahina approaches the podium.
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MS. NAHINA: Aloha and good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS AND AUDIENCE: Good morning.
MS. NAHINA: And, uh, my name is Kattie Nahina. l'm ... 1represent Na Kupuna 0 Maui,
and I feel that numbers speaks very loud. And you know that, uh, we're here to
support of that re ... of whatever they want to do. And, uh, I just wanted to say that
I'm here to support for... whatever they plan to do. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions?
MS. ALUETA: The final testifier is Patty Nishiyama.
Pause while Ms. Nishiyama approaches the podium.

MS. NISHIYAMA: Aloha. Kakahiaka Na Kupuna 0 Lahaina.
AUDIENCE: ... (inaudible) ...
MS. NISHIYAMA: Aloha. Kakahiaka Na Council members. . .. (testimony spoken in
Hawaiian) .. , Patty Nishiyama. I represent Na Kupuna 0 MauL I have lived in
Lahaina all of my life. We strongly urge your ap ... approval of the proposed West
Maui senior cen ... center.
Our kupuna need the ... need and deserve an
appropriate facility. We understand the proposed site includes a section
belonging to a Hawaiian family. We support the proposal to include this section
for open space. This would allow for aV ... availability or return of the land to the
legal owner. Please do not deny this project because of this particular land
section. Na Kupuna 0 Maui really appreciates the Council's respect for the true
ownership of the kuleana lands. If the Council wishes, I will personally conduct a
search for the family shown on the title. We ask that you please let this important
project move forward. Mahalo and may ... (testimony spoken in Hawaiian) ...
bless you all. Thank you .... (applause) .. .
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions? Thank you . . , .(pause). " Is there
anyone else that would wish to testify at this time? If not, public testi...oh!
Please come forward, state your name and organization at the microphone and
afterwards, if you would please go to the desk and fill out the paper. Thank you.
Pause while Mr. Waiohu, Jr., approaches the podium.

MR. WAIOHU: ... (testimony spoken in Hawaiian) ...
AUDIENCE: ... (inaudible) ...
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MR.

WAIOHU:
... (testimony spoken in Hawaiian)... William Waiohu, Jr.
... (testimony spoken in Hawaiian)... Lahaina.
. .. (testimony spoken in
Hawaiian). .. Long time I live in Lahaina. Now, talking about that one partial
[sic] that you cannot build nothing on, yeah, it's good to plant one garden or
make one parking space. But, I like the Council to remember to give, uh,
whoever own the land over there, tOrexchange another portion, uh, more or less
to that family, ohana. 'Cause, you know, the Hawaiians had fought for
... (pause) ... you know the Hawaiians was ... they fought for, you know,
everything was taken away from the Hawaiian. And, uh, it is sad to this day, we
still doing the same thing. Pioneer... Pioneer Mill don't own the land. You and I
knows that. The land is a lease land. How come Pioneer Mill cannot give back
the Hawaiian people that...who really own the ...the land? And now, we come
hea [sic] we get plenty problem. And ... and yet, we not taking care of that. Thank
you. Mahalo.
. .. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions? Thank you .... (applause). " Public
testimony is now closed, and we now would like to ask Alice Lee to give us an
overview. Alice.
I
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Committee members and ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
objections by you ...

I would request we do Item-3 first, if there's no

CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any.. .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... or the members.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... are there any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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ITEM NO.3:

PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF LAND
(PIONEER MILL OFFICE SITE. Lahaina) [TMK: (2) 4-6-0126:057.
,
APPROX. 1.864 ACRES] (C.C.00-316)

CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Ms. Lee, do you need any further time to get ready if we
do Item-3 first?
MS. LEE: No, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: We'll proceed with Item-3 then. And I'd like to note that Mr. Kane is
with us today. I failed to recognize him first time.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Good morning. Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Committee members and members of
the public, especially all of you seniors from Lahaina. Thank you very much for
coming.
Mr. Hokama has asked that we take up the item that you're most interested first.
This is the item which we are asking the members of the Committee to
recommend adopting the resolution to accept the land conveyance from Amfac
regarding the Pioneer Mill site, Pioneer Mill office site. This is approximately
1.864 acres. The location is right off Lahainaluna Road. The intended use is for
the West Maui senior center and possibly other government facilities, perhaps,
some small offices.
The proposal is to accept the entire property, except for the encumbered
portion-that sliver we were talking about. The County would then execute a
long-term lease or license with Amfac relative to that portion and the County
would then proceed with a friendly condemnation to address the ownership issue
of the encumbered sliver which is approximately 4,200 square feet, and Amfac
would pay the legal costs.
Mr. Chair, if I may, 1. .. 1 have map here and I also have a rendering to show the
members on how far we have come and how hard the seniors have worked on
the planning phase of this project. ... (referring to map) ... I believe most of you
have seen this before because we have taken up this item. The map to my right
shows the 1.86 acres, and the blue portion is that sliver we've been talking about
that is encumbered. . .. (showing drawing). .. To my left, we have a rendering of
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the plan for the senior center and as you can see-well, perhaps you can't see it
from here-but, the sliver in question is actually planned for no development.
There's no development planned for that area.
It..actually, the seniors
pre ... preferred that their building and their main activities be toward the back of
the lot.
Okay. Here we go again. . .. (pointing to drawing). .. So, here ... here now is the
sliver that we were talking about and they had planned for parking and open
space for this area. The back of the property would hold the ...the main activities
building. And as I mentioned to the Budget Committee earlier, they would like to
exit from the side street called Pauoa Street. They've even included a bus turnaround area. They put a lot of time and effort into this planning process .
. . .(pause) ...
That, Mr. Chair, is a brief overview of the project.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Does anyone have any questions for Ms. Lee at this
time?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Not of the project but I do have questions, but I'm
sure that you're not going to let this one slip away until all questions are asked?
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: We are not going to let anything slip away until all questions are
asked, Mr. Nishiki. However, since your questions are not directly about the
project, could you hold them for a few minutes ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sure.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... until the other members have a chance to comment? First of all,
does anyone else have any comment at this time? Before we get into that then,
as you remember, the Council recommended the resolution that would authorize
acceptance of thJs 1.8364 parcel of land from Pioneer Mill. A number of
concerns were raised due to the lack of clear title on a small section of the
property which we have addressed. I want you to know that I have met with Alice
and Pioneer Mill to discuss a few options. And these are the options I'd like you
to consider as we deliberate:
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First option: Accept the land, except for the sliver; enter into a long-term
lease for the sliver; begin condemnation proceedings for the sliver.
Option two: Accept all of the land, but don't develop anything on the sliver
of land.
Option three: Accept all of the land with the condition that Pioneer Mill will
clear the title of the sliver at its own expense.
The Chair favors option one, but I will open it up to discussion now. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Again, can you repeat, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Can you repeat the number one again?
CHAIR CARROLL: ... (inaudible) ... Num ... number one, is accept the land, except for
the sliver; enter into a long-term lease for that sliver of land; and begin
comendation ... comendation ... condemnation procedures for the sliver.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair.
three also ... (inaudible) ... ?

Option ... can you repeat options two and

CHAIR CARROLL: Option two: Accept all of the land, but don't develop anything on
that sliver or land. And option three: Accept all of the land, with the condition
that Pioneer Mill will clear the title of that small sliver at their own expense.
And, again, the Chair favors option number one. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for allowing me to
speak although I'm not a member of this Committee. It seems at first glance that
the ... the second options on numbers two and number three don't seem like we
would be able to do that anyway because Amfac doesn't have any authority to
offer us a dedication of property that's not theirs.
CHAIR CARROLL: If Corporation Counsel, perhaps ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, I mean if we're going to accept all of it, I don't think all
of it can include that sliver because it's not theirs to give us in the first place. So,
1. .. 1, again, that's just at first glance. If there's something that I'm missing within
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the options that you're presenting, it seems like the first one is the only one we
can do because we can't accept somebody else's land without them being here
or we talking to them.
CHAIR CARROLL: We", this is why the Chair likes the first option, but if Mr. Kushi
would like to comment on Mr. Kane's remark ... question?
MR. KUSHI:
Yeah.
Mr. Chair, Councilman Kane, uh, as a practical matter,
you ... you ... you are correct, practically. As a legal matter, what Amfac would do
or could do is convey a warranty deed to the parcels that they do have clear title
to and give you a quick-claim deed to the sliver, okay, with the understanding
that they can't get title insurance to the sliver. So, that's how we would operate
technically.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: May I just respond ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... or... or follow up. Mr. Kushi, from the legal standpoint
wouldn't it be better for the County to stay out of any type of agreements that
involve a piece of property that...that Amfac doesn't have any clearance to? I
mean, wouldn't it be just, for us, the best approach to just keep it simple and not
get involved in any way to a piece of property that isn't Amfac's or ours but
somebody else's? And, again, provide me with clarity if I'm missing something
along the line. Um ... 1 guess, I'm asking you to respond to the three options,
Mr. Kushi. I guess that's the roundabout way of asking my question. You heard
the three options, which one do you ... would you consider the, from the County's
standpoint, the best one?
MR. KUSHI: Again, Mr. Chair, Councilman Kane, I don't think it's my call to ... to you tell
you which one ... (inaudible) ....
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, no. I'm not
... I'm not asking for your ca",
I'm just asking for your opinion as ... as legal counseL
MR. KUSHI: Well, in a perfect world, uh, you know, you ... you'd like to accept clear title
to any parcel, but in this situation, as we have discussed with the Administration
and with the applicant, Amfac, uh, our office feels comfortable that, you know,
this matter can be resolved.
And this ... this sliver... title to this sliver
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and ... and ... and subsequent title insurance can be resolved, and Amfac has ... has
agreed to sponsor the costs and fees to ... to get to that point.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, from a legal standpoint, which option would be
the best one for us to consider is my question, Mr. Kushi? And I apologize if I'm
not being clear in my question.
MR. KUSHI: Well, again, as a policy matter, it's not my call. As a legal matter, I say,
you know, we can clear title even after we get possession.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And ... and ... and ... and I...and I think that...that is
the policy of this Council, whether we want to accept land that was stolen from a
family and now be part of a deal giving the stolen land to the County. That's as
simple as it is. Amfac stole this land. Now they want us to clear the title and
we're going to be part of, as Mr. Kane said, steeling this land. But I want to go
beyond this because I think by accepting today what is nine acres, I think that
this Council has the power, Mr. Chairman, as a matter of this nine acres was a
deal that was signed by the Administration to relieve Amfac of... of affordable
housing requirements. And the affordable housing requirements, and I know that
Mr. Hokama was concerned and also Jo Anne Johnson, and I'm sure that they'll
be speaking on this, was made by Amfac when they received zoning for 242
acres called North Beach Mauka.
MS. LEE: South Beach.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, excuse me.
South Beach Mauka.
I also,
and ... and ... and, well, what I need to get cleared from this Administration, there
was also a, on North Beach, four acres, uh, four hotels that was supposed to be
built and also an ... an employee housing condition was also on there that included
Amfac to build 324 units of affordable housing. So, the question today is this, by
accepting these nine acres-nothing against the homeless center or the senior
citizen, but what we are doing today-by accepting these nine acres, are we now
relieving Amfac of the affordable housing condition being placed in this SMA?
And the Mayor signed this agreement, but I think now it's come full course with
the nine acres that is being bargained for as part of saying, okay, for all the
housing that you owe, we're going to accept nine acres. And what is even more
of concern to me is the policy now that, by accepting these nine acres, Amfac
isn't even building the affordable housing or this senior citizen ... senior center,
the County is now having to foot this. So, when I look at what is on the table
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today, 1. .. 1...1. ..1 want to ask Administration this morning, is that what we're
accepting today, the deal? What is the deal? Because I think that policy-wise is,
you know, Riki brought is up and Jo Anne brought this up, I don't know if we want
to forgive 324 units that is owed the County in affordable units, and can
Administration answer that question?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair, I would like to now explain, again, because I've done this before,
the breakdown on the 324 units. There's a lot of feedback on this one
... (speaking to staff).. What...what you see before you right now, is a map of
South Beach Mauka. In 1991, Amfac went to the Land Use Commission, the
State Land Use Commission, to ask that these areas be changed from
Agriculture to Urban, and this area we're talking about is not all of South Beach
Mauka, but the southern portion of South Beach Mauka. And when they went to
petition the Land Use Commission to reclassify 242 acres-please keep in mind
that a substantial portion of this 242 acres were in an existing golf course, and
that's the South Course at Kaanapali that...that was already there-so, the net
amount is more in the neighborhood of about 150 acres. Well, for these 150
acres, the Land Use Commission-and ... and Amfac was going to develop on
these 150 acres, 240 lots, okay. So, 150 acres, 240 lots .. The Land Use
Commission had a very stringent policy back in 1991 which, by the way, has
been abandoned. They had a... what is called a 60/40 rule. So, with Amfac
planning to build 240 lots, they required Amfac to build 324 units for the
low/moderate income households. Now, I think all of us would agree that that is
a very excessive condition. And, as I said, the Land Use Commission has since
abandoned that policy.
You know the project in Lahaina that was planned for above the Lahaina Civic
Center-the Villages of Leialii to be built by the State? They too had a 60/40
requirement, and they too went back to the Land Use Commission to relieve
them of that requirement because they did no longer, you know, felt that it was
possible to do a 60/40. Sixty/forty means, of your 100 percent of units, 60 ... 60
percent needs to be affordable and 40 percent can be market. The idea being
that your market homes would subsidize the 60 percent affordable. Well, as it
turns out, nobody in the State could comply.
So, it's a ... a
unworkable ... unworkable formula and it has since been abandoned. Leialii has
gone back, as I said, to the Land Use Commission and the State Legislature to
be relieved of that requirement. And that's how stringent it is.
Now, getting back to Amfac. Although this was a very excessive requirement,
they intended to build their affordable units, the 324 at Puukolii. Remember what
happened to Puukolii? When they tried to develop in that area, there were
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protests lodged and finally an agreement was reached where they agreed to
build a separate road going up Puukolii, parallel to the existing road. Well, that
cost made it very difficult to proceed with the project. So, several years later,
back in 19 ... about two years ago, they came ...they went back to the Land Use
Commission and they got relieved of that 60/40 rule. In other words, the Land
Use Commission said, if you can work out something agreeable with the County
of Maui, then we will relieve you of this 324 units. So, that.. .that's when they
came to see us in early 1999 and it took us a very long time to reach an
agreement with Amfac. And part of that agreement was to donate ... that Amfac
would donate the site that you have come here to lobby for, the Pioneer Mill site
and also the Wainee area site. The Wainee area site is worth approximately, uh,
over $200,000, about $217,000. The Pioneer site is worth well over a million
dollars because it's commercial, sO ... and it's in a central location. So, for our
efforts, in value, we got close to $1.9 million in value.
Now, the CounciL.the County Council has a policy on affordable housing and the
Council's policy is to charge 10 percent of a project. In other words, if you're
building a hundred homes, then their policy is to ask you to ... to set aside what,
uh, ten of them for affordable homes-10 percent, not 60-10 percent, okay. So,
that's kind of the policy and practice that we have adopted as well-the
Administration. However, instead of-now going back to Amfac, 240 lotsinstead of saying we're going to charge you 10 percent, 24 units, I took the whole
amount. I took 240 plus the 3 ... 324, came out to 50 something units that they will
be essentially responsible for. But they would be also allowed to provide either
land or something else in lieu of the units, the actual units. So, this is where, you
know, for over a period of several months, we had many, many discussions and
finally came out with the agreementthat they would donate land for us .. .to us and
in exchange for the affordable units. Now, 1...1 hope that all of you will keep what
I have said in context, because it's important not to concentrate on the 324 which
is an artificial figure, but to concentrate on the 240 lots that they were planning to
develop which, by the way, they have not completely developed. I think they
have done maybe about 10.6 or 108 lots.
Now, again, if you keep everything in context, I think that you will find that we
came out ahead because we have received valuable land, which we are going to
use for our homeless resource center and for a senior center. So, I think that the
County really has been a winner in this ... in this discussion and agreement with
Amfac. Now, are there any questions that I can answer?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. What is ... what has occurred with North
Beach Makai and also the units that are due for the four hotels that have been
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built? Is this also a signed agreement with Amfac that they are relieved of this
also by us accepting this?
MS. LEE: No. They are not relieved of any affordable units as a re ... result of the North
Beach. North Beach, uh, the agreement with ... regarding North Beach is only for
the first hotel and 280 units only. And they satisfied that with their development,
with the Hale Mahaolu Project up Lahainaluna Road.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, you signed an agreement...
MS. LEE: Separately.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... that that would be acceptable for that?
MS. LEE: Yes, because ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. LEE: ... they owed for 47 units for the 280 hotel units, and they satisfied that
requirement with the Hale Mahaolu Project which is ... which we're not really
talking about today, another project, up Lahainaluna Road.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, have you signed any other agreements with Amfac
in re ... in ... in regards to relieving them of any other requirements, uh, and bind
this County as we're about to do right now?
MS. LEE: No. If... not if you're talking about any future development of North Beach, no.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you done a valuation on what you represented to
us today of the ... the building and also the, uh, where the homeless resource
center is? Those ... those acres? Has the County done any type of valuation?
MS. LEE: What we have ... the figures that I have given you, I have received from the
re ... Real Property Tax Office.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, you've not done any type of valuation that we
normally do when we accept land and get someone to ge ... hire a realtor to ... to do
this?
MS. LEE: We did not do an appraisal...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
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MS. LEE: ... because we didn't feel it was necessary considering the ... the size of the
properties and the information that we got from the Real Property Tax Office·.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done with Alice. I wanna ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... direct my question to ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Any ... any?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... the Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any of the other members have any questions at this time? Mr.
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Alice, again, just for clarification. So, out of this
deal, Amfac gives us all this land for the senior center and the homeless shelter
plus you mentioned the number of units that was 1.. .1 assumed you calculated the
240 lots with the 324 units and took 10 percent and that's what they owe in terms
of units, which would be roughly 56 ...
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... 56 units.
MS. LEE: Yes. But that's ... that's kind of stretching ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: ... our policy. Our policy is really is based on the actual number of units or
lots proposed, not what somebody else placed on it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: You see, they ... they had not intended to ... to develop any more than 240 lots.
It's the LUC who created that requirement of an ... anadditional 324. So, actually,
you know, I did stretch our policy a bit. Ac ... if...if I were to strictly follow it, I
should have charged them for 24 lots ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: .. .for 20 ... yeah, 24 lots.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
So, and these lots are currently, uh, or units,
they're ... are they currently under construction now or they haven't been ... ?
MS. LEE: They only sell lots ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Interesting.
MS. LEE: ... and they sell them to other people to develop.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, I see. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:
Yes.
Alice, thanks for coming.
This is tied
exclusively...the ... the project that we're talking about right now, not comingling
the two, the senior center is tied directly to South Beach Mauka?
MS. LEE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. That's what I want to focus on. The calculation for
what they would have owed, relating directly to South Beach Mauka and the land
that we're .. (tape change) ... taking about for the senior citizen center, uh, if
Amfac had developed those lots, did that actually include the cost of the housing,
because were they going to give these free to the people who were living there?
Or if it was just the development of the lots? You know, like ... in .. .in other words,
was the value of land, what we were talking about, as opposed to building and
constructing the actual housing unit on the land.
MS. LEE: Okay. Of the 324 units, not all were targeted to the very low-income.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: That's the area that would have been subsidized. Approximately 47 units
were targeted to the very low, so about maybe 80 percent and below of median
income, so that's the area of real subsidy. So, if you look at the cost to build a
multi-family unit and that's ... that's exactly wha ... what it would have been, a
multi-family unit, you're looking at a cost of prob ... possibly, urn, maybe a
130,000, okay. And the ... according to our sales guidelines, they wou\d ...they
would have to make it available to people who could afford something in that
area. So their actual subsidy may have been $10 to $15,000 per unit. Because
actually, you know, they're going to sell the unit, they're not going to give it away.
So, the subsidy, the difference between the cost, their actual cost and what they
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would sell it for becomes the subsidy.
$15,000.

The subsidy would run about $10 to

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Per. .. per unit?
MS. LEE: Per unit.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And then when we calculate that out, I don't have my
calculator in front of me but, you know, just figuring, uh ...
MS. LEE: Well, if it were, urn, let's say if it were 40 units ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: ... make it simple, oh, let's say it was $10,000 times 47, $4 ... $470,000 would
have been the .. .in, you know, if you look at it from a cost basis, that would have
been the subsidy, about $470,000.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And ... and the reason I'm asking these questions, Mr. Chair,
is because I think there's a confusion between the subsidy and the actual cost to
build and construct that housing and I sense that's where this confusion is
coming in. So, when you look at the value of the land-and correct me if I'm
wrong-when you look at the actual value of the land that's being dedicated,
iL.iL.excluding the kuleana parcel. If you look at the value of that land, that is
far in excess, at least if I'm doing my math correctly in my head, and with ... with
what you've just said, that's far in excess of the requirement which is tied directly
to this particular parcel.
MS. LEE: And that's why felt that there was no need for an appraisal because we had
the basic information from the Tax Office, we knew we were getting well beyond
the value of what they would have paid in cash. And, you know, we feel very
satisfied with the agreement.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 1. ..1 think that was where some of the initial questions came
from and ... and once again, the acceptance of this land, I really believe in my own
mind, using the formulas and using not the total. cost to construct and ... and build,
when you look at that, that would appear to be far in excess of what we're
getting, but when you look at the subsidy aspect of it, that's where I really see
we're benefiting. So, 1...1 understand whaL.what's being proposed and because
it's not tied to North Beach, which is another issue, uh, Mr. Nishiki's questions,
really more relate to Kaanapali Ocean Resort. So, I appreciate you giving us this
information. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Lee, you ... you mentioned about
the 242 acres of Ag to Urban. I was just reading through this, uh, the original one
from Ag to Urban and I guess you mentioned about 92 acres was existing
cult.. .golf course, so there's 150 acres left for them to develop 240 lots?
MS. LEE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ~NE: And, towards the end of your presentation, you ... you
mentioned that those lots weren't completely developed. Can you tell us how
many lots were completed? Of the 240 lots, what did they complete in that
development?
MS. LEE: Approximately 108.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ., .(pause).. , Okay. And then when you refer to ... you use
the word excessor... words excessive condition. Is that something that was
written somewhere or that was some sort of report? Was it part of the
amendment that they made in 1999? I think the amendment to certificate filed
May 10th , uh, April 14th, '99, they amended Condition No.1, which is the 324, and
then they had some other language that said ... inserted in there ... (inaudible) ...
MS. LEE: Well...well I actually...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... where you're coming up with excessive condition.
MS. LEE: Uh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that something that the State Land Use Commission
determined or is that something that you came up with? So, I'm trying to find out
where you got that from.
MS. LEE: I got that from, uh, doing research with the Land Use Commission and I have
a list of all the ... the projects that really have not been able to fulfill the 60/40
requirement. But the actual justification, I lifted directly from the HCDCH. This is
the State arm of the Housing Development Corporation. Their arguments before
the Land Use Commission and the State Legislature, they were argued ... arguing
against the 60/40 rule. And I have that, urn, I they .. .they gave me their
justification in writing and I can provide that to you, if you want.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The 108, Mr. Chair, if I may?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. The 108 developed lots, were they completed
prior to the 1999 request for amendment to the State Land Use Commission?
MS. LEE: No. They're just recently worked on. Nothing was done prior to the, uh, their
petition to the Land Use Commission to amend their decision and order of 1991.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, just for clarification, on, April 14, '99, at that point
nothing was done and since then till now, which is about two years exactly
almost, they've developed those 108 out of the 240 lots on that 150 acres?
MS. LEE: Uh ... by developed, 1. .. 1 mean they subdivided and sold ... they don't, they're
not builders ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Uh-huh.
MS. LEE: ...they're only intending to do lots. So, the, yes, they developed the lots.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, from '91 to '99, so ... l'm just trying to wrap ...
MS. LEE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... this together, yeah?
MS. LEE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, from '91 to '99, nothing was ever accomplished?
MS. LEE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that what you're saying?
Okay. And ... and, Mr. Chair, what I'm trying to do is, I'm trying to see what Amfac
did when they entered into the original agreement and when they accepted the
conditions of the agr... you know, the agreement along with the conditions, and
then when they came forward in 1999 to ask for the amendment, and what took
place during that time ...that...so, that's ... that's where I'm trying to gather
information from.
MS. LEE: I could ... 1 could request that information from Amfac. However, again, going
back... back to the early 90's and mid-90's, to put a ho ... again, I would re ... remind
you that they did try to develop Puukolii and that was a project that would contain
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well over 324 affordable units. Now, in addition to that period where they ran into
difficulty with having to build an extra road, they also were facing the closure of
the Pioneer Mill, which that was not expected either. So, financially they could
no longer also meet the ... the obligations that they had previously committed to.
But as ittumed out, they ... they weren't alone, there were many, many other, uh,
developers throughout the State, inclu .. .'including the State itself, who felt that the
orjginal requirement of a 60/40 rule was not feasible.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Regarding the separate road, when you talk about Puukolii
and the demonstrations against them and the opposition to that, the separate
road was required by who? The State Land Use commission?
MS. LEE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Who ... who required that road?
MS. LEE: It's ... was an agreement that they reached with the neighbors ... with the
neighboring residents.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, it was an agreement that they made, they agreed to do
that?
MS. LEE: Otherwise, they were going to be, uh, the neighbors, uh, my understanding
that they were going to intervene.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, as a result of that agreement, did they proceed
with building that road and providing the houses?
MS. LEE: No. They couldn't. They couldn't afford to do the project anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
... (pause). . .
Okay.
And ... and ... and finally, Mr.
Chairman, I appreciate you allowing me to ask the questions. I guess I'm trying
to understand when you said, "keep things in context," I think from .. .for me
anyway, what I'm seeing is agreements that are being made and then not being
followed through. And it seems that there's a consistency of that from Amfac
side. And so when you say, keep it in context, it seems like you're trying to tell
us, well, look at this over here, don't look at anything else, look at this. And
I.. .and I'm going to resist you on that, Alice, because I think it's important for us to
look at the big picture ... the whole thing in its entirety before we move forward
with this, and I think there's some interesting points that are being brought
forward. And I. .. a lot of the things that you said, you know, I'm not sure, there's
some things that you said that I wasn't able to find in out... in our binders, Mr.
Chair. So, with all due respect to a verbal presentation, it's always nice to have
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things that we can substantiate it with written documentation before so we can,
again, when we're faced with making decisions that are, I mean, the bottom line,
I mean, the ac(;ountability part is going to come to play right here in this room.
So, it's difficult to make a decision without having substantiated statements in
front of us. So, you know, I'm here to just gather as much information as I can
before I make the decision. I'm not a part of this Committee, I'll be voting on this
at the full Council. And ... but I'm here today because I think there's a lot of issues
that need to be resolved before moving forward, so.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair? Is it possible to get the questions in writing as we had asked
before?
CHAIR CARROLL: That's just what I was going to ask Mr. Kane. Uh ... we appreciate
your asking these questions now, because that way when it does come before
the full Council, we can have the answers ready for you at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: So, it's, uh, we really appreciate all of these things coming up at this
time.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, let me make a comment then, Mr. Chair. Sometimes
we can't create questions until we hear the presentation. Okay? And we were
given a very, you know, articulated presentation and it went through various
things here and there and those, just the presentation in itself generates
questions. So, I apologize I didn't come forward with questions. I think there
were some questions already, but I think questions are being generated just from
this presentation today. And, uh, unfortunately, some people may look at it as
red tape but, you know what, bottom line is we're making definitive decL .. we're
making definite decisions here. So, I think it's fair for us to ask these questions,
so. I will see if I can get forward some more ... more questions that 1...1 feel
are ... are needed to be answered. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All presentations and discussions generate questions. And. if you
get that to us in writing ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Hokama.

... we will have it for the time of next meeting.

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, it's unfortunate
that, uh, to assist our seniors for West Maui and get this site, we are being asked
to-you know, I just see this as a conflict of lot of good intentions, Mr. Chairman.
And, of course, in this project which is the West Maui senior center is getting in
the gun fire of... of couple of things that I think is still important.
I'm having a hard time seeing how this still fulfills the need for affordable housing
to be provided, okay. And that's why this condition was imposed in the first
place, to provide the residents of this County affordable housing, which we know
is a problem. We know one of the symptoms of no affordable housing is
homelessness. So, there's ... you have now this morning before us another
related item for a resource center to address homelessness. And yet, we're still
not addressing the cause of part of the homelessness which is lack of affordable
housing, okay. And ... and we're seeing that this project, whether on its own merit,
is to be substituted for affordable housing in one sense. To me that's not fair to
this project. It's not fair to those that want us to ensure affordable housing for
this County. And so, Mr. Corporation Counsel, has the Land Use Commission
approved the change of... of accepting how the conditions are met? 'Cause that's
how I understand the attachment provided in committee number three, subject to
pro ... Land Use Commission on Page 3, that the conditions can be changed, but
the Land Use Commission needs to approve it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: I'm sorry, I wasn't following you. Wh ... what do you want? What is your
question, I mean.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is the except...the change that is being proposed by the
Administration on Exhibit "B" ...
MR. KUSHI: Exhibit "B" to what?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Exhibit "B" to ...to this Agreement in Satisfaction of
Affordable Housing Conditions that the Committee has provided in our binders.
MR. KUSHI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Exhibit "B", which is the Land Court, Page 3,
first paragraph-how ... how you can either do the conditions as set forth or revise
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the conditions, but still be subject to approval by the Land Use Commission. So,
would this be required to have Land Use Commission consideration?
MR. KUSHI: Um ... Mr. Chair, uh, Mr. Hokama. 1...1 think you're referring to a document
that was recorded back in 1981? Is ... is that right? Or '91?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Corporation Counsel.

That's why I'm asking you this question, Mr.

MR. KUSHI: Yeah. Yeah. I'm trying to get clear what you're asking. Uh .. .if this is the
one that's dated in 1991, I believe that condition was amended ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: By the Commission?
MR. KUSHI: ... by, uh, and is referenced in your packed as Exhibit "C", ... (pause) ...
which is amendment filed on May 10th... 1 mean dated April 14th , 1999, which
incorporates the amendment by the Land Use Commission of those certain
conditions. So, I believe your question is, does it have to go back to the Land
Use Commission?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. And ... and reading it from the documents, I would say no.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And who made that deter... determination?
MR. KUSHI: The Land Use Commission;
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The Land Use Commission.
MR. KUSHI: It basically said to, um, uh, as terms mutually agreeable between
par... petitioner and the County of MauL And this is what has been happening.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The petitioner is Amfac, JMB, right?
MR. KUSHI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Amfac is saying that they giving themselves
approval to change the condition? Is that how-I don't see any ... anything from
the Land Use Commission?
MR. KUSHI: Uh ... maybe we should find the amended conditions. I'm not sure where it
is. Alice will get a copy of it.
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MS. LEE: Yes, we did have that ... (inaudible)...
MR. KUSHI: Right. But...but my recollection looking at the file previously was that there
was a... a motion or a petition to amend the 1991 decision and order, which then
resulted in a 1998 or '99 amended decision and order which is reflected in the
recorded document in 1999.
COUNCILMl;MBER HOKAMA: Uh, Mr. Chairman, all I'm going to say is that, uh, while
I support the senior center project, I will still support the need for this County to
pursue affordable housing and I will not trade one for the other. I think it's both
has merit, we both need to pursue these two areas. I will not trade one for the
other.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I. .. when I read this, I still believe that this agreementl'm ... I'm going to read it, okay? This is Agreement in Satisfactiqn of Affordable
Housing Conditions in Employee Housing Plan. So, I still believe that what Alice
is saying is not totally true. That when we are setting aside now to accept these
parcels, it is relieving the County of the affordable housing conditions set forth, as
she mentioned, for the Mauka project and also the employee housing plan set
forth in the Makai project. And this bothers me. Employee housing plan is a plan
that was set forth by the granting of the SMA for the four hotel sites in the Makai
project. So, that means that we're not going to see when these hotels are built
any more employee housing, I think, because this is going to be the document
that is accepting what is owed to us when the plan for the new-oh, oh, I know
that we've got what four hotel sites there that can be built.
CHAIR CARROLL: I think Ms. Lee, perhaps, can answer your question. Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: I think, Mr. Nishiki, you are misinterpreting what you're reading. You know,
we ... we ... we were talking about the 324 units imposed by the Land Use
Commission as a result of reclassification of land from Ag to Urban. Now you're
bringing in North Beach Makai, which has to do with hotel development...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
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MS. LEE: ... which doesn't come under the Land Use Commission. You know, you're
mixing ... you're mixing 'em all up. The Land Use Commission is the 324 for
South Beach Mauka, period. North Beach Makai has to do with the hotel
development and the imposition of affordable housing by the Planning
Commission ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. LEE: ... yeah? Okay. Now 1...1 said before, that 47 units that are due from North
Beach Makai was satisfied with the Hale Mahaolu Project, which is up
Lahainaluna Road, which is built and it's for the lower-senior, uh, lower-income
senior citizens. So, that's separate. None of these agreements have anything to
do with future development of the next hotel and the next hotel and the next
hotel. I think they can ... they have three or four more lots. That has to be dealt
with in the future. What we're talking about is .. .is South Beach Mauka and the
324 units and how the Land Use Commission no longer has that 60/40 rule,
doesn't apply it to anybody and those who do have it in the State of Hawaii, have
gone back to the Land Use Commission and got relieved of that 60/40
requirement. 1. .. I. .. I. .. you can, uh, we can talk about this until the cows come
home, but I assure you that is exactly accurate. So, you can concentrate your
discussion the on 324, but North Beach is not relieved of any units for future
development.
CHAIR CARROLL: You have anything further, Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And ... and ... and ... and the other concern is, as ... as Riki
has brought up, you know, if we were to even have imposed the lower route or
the 50 percent or less of the housing requirement-50 to 70, which is 19 units,
Alice, and 14 units in the 70 to 80's-that's 30 .. .47, but you've got the 80's and
90's that have 29 units there. And this is my concern, that here we are accepting
land only, no housing at all to be built by this developer, and then now we're
going out through the good graces of this Administration and ... and Council to go
and float a bond, Mr. Chairman, which was not even our requirement. This was
placed on Amfac and we're having to go out now and build this homeless
shelter... center. This is why 1...1 am saying, and ... and I think a lot of us have
concerns today, that despite of what Alice is saying is a good deal, I think it's a
bad deal. Here were are, supposedly a condition that we placed on a developer
and the developer is not building one iota of affordable housing as has been
stated-we are having to do it. And in this ~ituation, the developer would have
had to also put these housing units on land. So, here's the loss. Here is the
loss. And ... and ... and it's not having to do with the senior center or anything. It
just has to do, as Riki said, with affordable housing. Let's deal with it. We've not
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and we're relieving the developer of that responsibility. And, for me, that's why
my concern ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Lee.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... on this ... on this affordable housing ...
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry, Mr. Nishiki, were you finished?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... deal that this Administration has entered into. And,
that's what I just ... (inaudible) ... that's all. And without being repetitious again,
then we accept land that's ...that we don't even own, as Dain has pointed out.
Land ownership is questionable. Na Kupuna has come out and wa ... was nice in
saying, yeah, it's okay, but I don't know, you know, if someone takes the land
and doesn't have clear title, would you accept something that you know really
belongs to someone else? That, to me, is wrong. Somebody is giving us land
that they didn't even own! They took it! And they .. .they made believe that they
owned it all this time. And the planted cane and everything else. If you really
look at this situation, that's what's happening. So, now these guys don't have
owner... and they go, oh, now, County of Maui, you take 'em now, we don't have
the headache. This is what it is. This is the truth. And I don't believe that we're
getting a good deal. I believe in faith, you know.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This deal is a bad deal.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Uh, Mr. Nishiki, I totally respect your... your privilege to have your opinion on
this. No matter what I say, no matter how much information I provide, uh, seems
like you pretty much made up your mind on this. And, you know, that...that's
your prerogative. But...but I do want to let the public know-I do really want to let
the public know that we really made a really good effort, good-faith effort to come
up with an agreement that would be most beneficial to the ...to the community in
West Maui. Because with this homeless resource center, we are providing a 114
affordable units. That's what we're doing, a 114, and for the senior center, we
are providing you with something that you have been waiting a lifetime for and
deserve considering that you have no senior center in ... in Lahaina, on the west
side.
But I also would like to make a comment. That the Council-two ... two pointsand this is not to be antagonistic or anything, it's just for information. The County
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Council, Mr. Nishiki, if you recall, back in 1999, was given a proposal for an
affordable housing ordinance, which my department worked very long and hard
to develop. And in this draft ordinance, which the Council had and which the
Council did not pass after holding it for over a year, and that's really their
privilege, but in that draft ordinance was the ability for a developer to provide in
lieu money, lots, land, facility and infrastructure. So, that concept is not new, it
was discussed over and over and over again within these chambers. The only
reason why that draft ordinance didn't pass, to my knowledge, is because there
was a disagreement over how to determine the in-cash .. .the in-lieu-cash
contribution. Everybody felt I was charging too much, but nobody could come up
with another option. So, that ordinance went by the wayside. But everybody,
every Council member agreed to the idea of allowing a developer to provide
money, land, infrastructure-something other than housing. That concept was
accepted unanimously. So, I don't' want any of you to leave here thinking, oh,
this is a brand new idea. Oh, no, it isn't. This was accepted. This was an
accepted idea. And I don't mind arguing over, did we get value for value. I think
that's a legitimate argument and let's continue discussing that.
The second point I want to make is that the County Council itself, since 1999,
has imposed affordable housing requirements on one project-in three years, on
one project. And they impose a 10 percent requirement on one project.
The .. .there was only one other project they required something of-that was land
in Wailea-not even for housing, but to preserve the area for research and ... and
cultural preservation. So, you know, when you hear these comments coming at
me, please believe me that, you know, 1...1 have done a lot of research on this
and I have a made a good-faith effort in this ... in this situation trying to make the
best deal possible for the community.
If the Council decides that no, this is not the best deal, then So be it. But I want
all of you to have all the facts. And that's ... and not just hear one side of the
story. Thank you .... (applause)...
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I really, urn, I really appreciate the comments
of Ms. Lee because I understand Mr. Nishiki's concerns and the concerns of
other members, because when you read the agreement, yes, in the agreement
there are many elements, which Mr. Nishiki aleads ... alludes to and that's, uh,
contained within the documents that we have today. But each one of those
aspects or each one of those phases, each portion of it, really refers back to
'conditions that were specifically tied to, whether it was South Beach Mauka or
North Beach. It doesn't specifically say, oh, well, they're all lumped together.
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Each one of them had their own qualifications. And that's what we're trying, I
believe, to differentiate.
The formula, whether you agree or disagree with the formula arrived at, the
ultimate thing that we're trying to decide is, there's a cash value to every aspect
of whether you're building the housing, whether you're donating land, uh,
whether you're providing other goods and services. Everything has a value to it,
and I believe that in this situation, the value is what Ms. Lee is saying that it is.
If... if you look at Amfac's history, Amfac does not build houses. They have never
built houses-or at least JMB hasn't. Their history is to ... always been, take the
land, sell it to someone else who would then develop it. The failure I see,
and ... and it goes back, once again, to planning and it goes back to the core issue
which is, if we want conditions, if we want to have an end product that actually
embodies what we believe in, what we really want to see as the end product,
then the argument should not be here, it should be with the process and the way
that we arrive at those formulas. Are we going to condition it to say, you must
build and construct, you must give, uh, let's say a certain amount of land, it...that
there must be a timeline assessed to these things? Even Mr. Kane said
basically, well, how many of these units were actually constructed on the part of
the developer. All of these things come together, but what we need to do as a
Council, what we need to do in the planning process through the SMA, all of
these things, they have to have a timeline-a date certain. We have to put
conditions on what we really expect, what we will accept in lieu of. And I believe
Ms. Lee is exactly right-·that's where we have failed or passed, uh, Planning
Commiss.ions have failed to really specify what we would accept, what is
acceptable, what we're arguing about, or what we're discussing right now really,
you know, it begs the bigger question which is, what kind of conditions are we
going to place on developers or developments and specify and actually set the
guidelines and parameters for what those will be.
In this case, I think that the Administration has made an honest attempt to try to
equate at least a value and look at that in terms of what we're receiving. And so
for me, 1. .. 1understand it. I think that the discussion is good because it points out
serious flaws in the system, but I think the bigger question that We have to really
address, Mr. Chair, is exactly what Ms. Lee alluded to. And that is, what is
acceptable to us and what can we really get for our dollars. And that is up to us
and it is up to the Planning Department to develop rules that really compel some
kind of action. So, 1. .. 1thank you. I know I've gone on a bit, but I really think it's
important that we look at the core issues here, and I appreCiate the Chair's
indulgence.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, do you have anything else?
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Members, I've worked on this from the beginning as Chair of our Committee, and
I've worked with Alice Lee and her staff, and I believe that all the questions that
Mr. Nishiki asked we looked at, even before today, and I found that this project is
appropriate-that is why I came up with those recommendations that I gave you
at the beginning. I feel the project is appropriate and I would ask at this time if
we would accept as Option No.1, accept the land, except for the sliver, enter into
a long-term lease agreement for the so ... sliver, and begin condemnation
proceedings for the sliver as the resolution. And I would ask, the Chair would
entertain a motion ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... recommending that resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moved and seconded. Discussion. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What troubles me with this recommendation, Chairman,
is if there is agreement that there is, uh, to accept that land that is not in question
and that 8,000 foot sliver, which we have ... some have made an assessment
does not belong to Amfac, who are we going to enter in a long-term agreement
with?
CHAIR CARROLL: As I understand it, Amfac can give us the lease on that, but I would
defer to Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama, uh, I think, we need to keep in mind that that
property has been used by Amfac for over a 100 years. So, they do have, you
know, legal rights to that property. But the reason why we're recommending that
we do the, uh, we execute a lease or license with them on the sliver in question,
which is 4,200 square feet, is because we do want to get to the bottom of
the ... the land ownership issue. And to ... to deal with it directly, we can do it
through immanent proceedings condemnation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What are the terms of the lease?
MS. LEE: Well, if... if you agree to that arrangement, then now.. .then we now have to
work out a lease with them, and we're looking at some kind of long-term lease in
order to give us time to .. .to deal with the legal issues and, perhaps, ifthere is a
consideration required, then maybe a dollar.

- 31 -

HUMAN SERVICES AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Mciui

May 3, 2001

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I still think for me, Chairman, Option 3 is the best
option.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Members? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, I'm supporting this
item to get it out of Committee to have it...a more full-blow discussion with the
whole Council. Because as we've seen today, there's a lot...a lot of questions
and issues coming up, you know, just based on the presentation. And I
appreciate, you know, Ms. Lee's effort at doing all the research for us, but some
other things have come up as, you know, that you've heard from some of my
colleagues. And I would like to see the additional information provided to use
prior to our next scheduled Council meeting, should this motion pass, which I
believe by the 16th .
CHAIR CARROLL: It will be provided.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. So, I think until then, I have reservations about,
you know, where I will go when it comes, if it does go to the Council, is where I
stand until I see this additional information requested. 'Cause there is a
legitimate concern with the land ownership issue on that particular sliver. So,
that's really, I guess, been enlightening for me to hear today. So, that's all I'd like
to say for now on that. Thank you.
.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any further discussion? Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, uh, the
discussion this morning, especially from Mr. Kane and also from Riki and Wayne,
there are a lot of good points, and believe me, if we don't have all the answers, I
don't think we should look at it going to first reading and then have the answer
there. Because I think that's why it's in Committee, that's where we iron out most
of the ... most of the hard knocks. And the fine tuning would be at the Council.
Can you imagine if taking this to the Council, there'll be a discussion like this all
day too.
And although Ms. Lee bring up a good point, I can see where she ... she's coming
from as far as the exchange go. And as far as Mr. Hokama's concern as far as
building homes, you know, and then sort of, almost like an exchange, but
Ms. Lee is right, the Council did approve that ab ... about land and ... and that's
where I'm coming from. And I can support the motion, but my biggest concern is,
I hope we can sort of iron this out because that sliver is such an important thing.
And this issue is such an important...we all agree that the seniors need a home.
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We all agree that it's a good deal for the ... but then, as I said, there's so many
unanswered question that need to be answered.
So, I'll be ... 1 not really, really, uh, in support of the motion, Mr. Chairman, but I'll
go along with it if the Committee deci...decide to shove it to the Council, but I still
feel this is the place where we should iron it out. Because Kane, Nishiki, is not
members of the Committee, but they felt it was important that they come
and ... and pump out the questions that we need to find answers for. And Ms. Lee
did a ... did a ... did a damn good job this morning, because she bring back a lot
of... a lot of things she mentioned that I sat on the Council for that long and I
remember issues that we did bring up ... that she brought up that...that is true. So,
that...that's my comment, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Actually, the only questions we have now
are the ones that, uh, Mr. Kane is going to submit to us in writing. The rest of the
discussion over here is, more or less, the opinion what is appropriate. It's not
getting in ... the facts are before us. And the ...these same facts will be for ... will still
be before us when we go before the whole Council. And I really feel that it might
be more appropriate to have the nine members over there. Except for Mr.
Kane's information I can think of, and that was, I believe, more for clarification
and confirmation of what was said. I cannot think of anything else that really we
could bring forward if we did keep this in Committee except, uh, being repetitious
in what we've discuss today. So, I would encourage the members and ask for
you to support to pass this on.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Well, Mr. Chairman, if I may.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Like Riki mentioned, to exchange for.. .for low ... low
income housing for something like this although ... although he do support the
seniors. As I say, we all support the seniors, but that's ... that's the big thing, you
know.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm, uh, I'm sorry Mr. Kawano, you had something else?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No. 1. .. 1 really appreciate the comments of the other
members and 1...1 really understand the conflict when you're looking at the
kuleana parcel, because I also support any kind of land issues which exists all
over West MauL There ... this is just one parcel of hundreds and, perhaps,
thousands of parcels that have, you know, questionable title to them. I really
appreciate every comment that's made. But I think the important thing that the
Council is doing in acknowledging the existence of this kuleana parcel is
acknowledging that it is there and coming forward and being willing to set aside
compensation for the families. I can guarantee you if that parcel went to
someone ... some other entity, Amfac will sell it to someone else and they'll build
something else on it and then where is the value? How are we really serving that
family who ultimately owns that land when something's built on it? End of story.
I mean, I've seen a lot of that. So, at least this way, I believe the Council's doing
something that is good and that is right. We're acknowledging that it exists,
we're willing to set aside compensation. And for that, I think, it is really critical
that we do this. SO,for me, 1. . .1 support the dialog, 1. .. 1think it's good, but I also
think it's good that we acknowledge that we're trying to do the right thing. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And, again, 1...l'm going to
speak against this motion. You know, I've have already mentioned which option I
fare, and I'll tell you why, Mr. chairman. Okay. I think that we have a general
understanding' of this questionable area, the kuleana, the portion that, uh, uh, .has
a question of who owns it and that's why I don't agree with this option,
Mr. Chairman. Okay. Why should we, the one that's going to be assuming the
land from the current caretaker or steward, Amfac, do their responsibility to clear
the title? .. (tape change) ... Why are we paying our peoples' money to do what
is already Amfac's responsibility to provide to us if they want us to accept this
property and help us do this project? Again, we're relieving some ... an entity, that
has made an agreement and we are now going to use the peoples' money to
take care of their responsibility? I don't...I. .. 1won't support that option. I think we
need to clear this title. I think this ... whoever owns this should be compensated if
we want to use it, but I don't think it's our responsibility to use peoples' money to
do Amfac's job.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, clarification, Mr. Hokama. You're saying you favor
Option 3 then?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: l'm ... 1 understand Option 3 as you said it is, for us to
accept it, right? And with the warranty deed?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you ... you know, you have nothing before us,
Chairman. We just have what your verbal presentation from what it...what is
three options. And to me, that is what I understood Option 3 to be. So, if I'm
wrong, I would ask you to correct it for me, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: No ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Chairman, excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Mr. Chairman, can we have a recess and have that in
writing please?
CHAIR CARROLL: Short recess ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS: 10:38 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:57 a.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Human Concerns Committee is back in session ... .(gavel) . ..
All right, members. On Option No.1, the resolution on the floor. We would need
to have that it would be ... the resolution would have to be, uh, changed to reflect
that it is except for the sliver of land, because that is not in the original resolution,
... (pause) ... if it is adopted.
All right. We do have a motion on the floor. Any further discussion? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And ... and ... and once an for all, I'll lay this to rest,
but hopefully we'll get some answers before a reading, if... if it gets out of this
Committee. But, you know, I look at if my children were going to buy a land, or
even Mike Molina as a fellow Councilperson who going to buy a piece of land.
He was going to invest, like we are going to, millions of dollars to put up a
structure and I would ... 1 would if my daughter came to me and said, "Daddy, I
want to buy this land but it's got questionable title clearances." So, you know,
somebody else owns it. What would I tell my daughter? And that is how I would
also like to deal in making a decision using facts here this morning. And if that
question came up to me, I would tell my daughter... or I would tell Michael if he
cam up to me and said, "Eh, I going buy this land, but get questionable title." I
would tell 'em, no way. No way would I give 'em any other advice but why would
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you buy something and spend money when you know there is no clear title? And
this is the policy that I will always follow in spending taxpayers' money and in
making a so-called decision. And ... and ... and I would hope that, you know, as we
deliberate and ... and make decisions ... important decisions for the people of Maui
County, we would follow this also. And, you know, for this reason, I cannot, if it
gets out of Committee, support the recommendation. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 1...1 just...and I appreciate what Mr. Nishiki is saying. One of
the things that I would like to see between now and the next time that this comes
up, is also with regard to Mr. Hokama's, uh, concerns about compensation and
who's going to pay for this and with taxpayers' dollars. 1...1 would like to see
some type of agreement that we enter into with Amfac that we do not expend
taxpayer dollars without compensation from Amfac, at least some type of
reimbursement, for whatever costs we go through in ... in doing this. I believe that
we are trying to ... along the lines of what Auntie Patty Nishiyama and
William Waiohu said, I believe we are trying to do the right thing. We're not going
to just take the land without compensating the family. Auntie Patty said that she
would make every attempt to help us find the just and right owners of this land to
give them compensation and I believe that that's the proper thing to do. And
whatever compensation we do end up giving for that, I would also hope that that
is not with taxpayer dollars. Whatever the value or the ...the determined value of
that land is, that we can include that in .. .in this document that we execute for the
lease, uh, however we can tie that. And I know that Mr. Kushi, you know, can
help in the drafting of that, but I...in general, 1. .. 1 do not support ever taking land
that has a clouded title on it. I think that's not good policy. In this particular
situation, because we are making a good-faith attempt to do something that
should have been done, perhaps, a hundred years ago, if not longer, I think that
we are trying to right that, and not do it at the taxpayers' expense. So, I will be
supporting the motion with the understanding that we will be obtaining
compensation for doing what is necessary to make this right. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Let me make this really clear to the motion on the floor.
The motion on the floor is to accept the resolution as amended, and the
amendment is Option 1-accept the land, except for the sliver; enter into a
long-term lease agreement for the sliver; and begin con ... condemnation
proceedings for the sliver. And if anybody ever came up afterwards and we lost
the court case, they can have the sliver, and in which case there would be no
cost to us.
All right. Is everyone clear? All those in favor, raise your hands.

- 36-

HUMAN SERVICES AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

May 3, 2001

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: "Aye".
CHAIR CARROLL: Chair votes "aye". Opposed? Two opposed, motion carried.

VOTE:

Molina,

Vice-Chair

AYES:

Councilmembers:
Chair Carroll.

NOES:

Councilmembers: Hokama and Kawano.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

Johnson

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of proposed resolution as
revised and FILING of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Since we just had a recess, if there's no objection, we'll
go right on to the next item.

ITEM NO.7: WEST SIDE RESOURCE CENTER LEASE AGREEMENT

(C.C.01-110)

CHAIR CARROLL: HSD ... HSED-7. And I began on this, but for our viewing public, I'm
going to repeat my opening statement.
Members, as you remember, the Council accepted a five-year... acre parcel of
land from Pioneer Mill earlier this term which will be developed into the West
Side Resource Center. Today, we are discussing the lease agreement to Maui
Economic Concerns of the Community, the entity that is developing the West
Side Resource Center. We will need to vote on the proposed resolution
authorizing a grant of lease of real property to Maui Economic Concerns of the
Community, Incorporated. And Alice, could you please give an overview on that?
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For a quick overview, this is regarding the Maui
Economic Concerns of the Community lease, and we're asking that you
recommend adoption of the resolution before you. And, uh, as far as area, I
believe, we all know that it's five acres, located above the Lahaina Aquatic
Center. We're asking for a 55-year lease at $1 per year to be used as a
homeless resource center. We expect to develop about a 114 units there. As far
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as prior actions, the Council approved Amfac's dedication of this property to the
County and the MECC'S 201G-118 Application on March 2nd of this year. The
Budget Committee recommended approval of a $4 million bond appropriation for
the development of the West Maui Homeless Resource Center on April 2ih. And
the Grants Review Committee recommended approval of the lease on
March 21 S \ 2001.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I have a question.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is Corporation Counsel's comment to us this
morning after reading Mr. Smith's May 3rd test...written testimony ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... stating that Corp. Counsel would be sending us a
request for reconsideration?
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel. Yeah, uh, one moment. You don't have the
letter? Wait. I have it right...
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chairman, Councilperson Hokama. I just reviewed this letter about,
uh, beginning of this meeting, and I spoke to Mr. Takayesu, who is the
Corporation Counsel. He did have discussions with Mr. Smith and, I believe, the
reference Mr. Smith makes was to a Council hearing and he is apparently
alleging that he was denied an opportunity to ... to testify. Mr. Takayesu has
discussed this matter with myself and ... and your Chair here and, I believe
this ... Mr. Smith's concerns will be brought up at a Council hearing on ... on ... on
this matter as well as whatever matter Mr. Smith wants to bring up.
CHAIR CARROLL: Does that answer your question, Mr. Hokama?
Committee that he was referring to.

It was not our

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand, but if his point is valid and it's going to be
reconsidered, the issue of this deed ... (pause) ... should we ... we continue to
proceed?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Corp. Counsel.
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MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, Council member Hokama. I believe we should proceed. I
believe what you've done in the past in terms of reviewing this matter in
accepting the resolutions ... approving the resolutions were ... were proper and
according to procedure, and I feel no reason why you should stop at this point.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? If not, the Chair will entertain a
motion to recommend that the proposed rus ... resolution be adopted and that the
County Communication Number 01-110 be filed.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Discussion. Hearing none, all in favor?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: "Aye".
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: "Aye".
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: "Aye".
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Note, four in favor, one opposed. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council member: Kawano, Molina, Vice-Chair Johnson and
Chair Carroll.

NOES:

Councilmember Hokama.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of proposed resolution and
FILING of communication.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any announcements?
MS.ALUETA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: If not, thank you for your participation today and this meeting of
Human Concerns is now adjourned. . . .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN: 11:15 a.m.

APPROVED BY:

n~~~

Robert Carroll, Chair
Human

Services and Economic
Development Committee
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